
TOWN OF YAMPA 
TOWN BOARD AGENDA 
October 15, 2025 – 6:00 pm 

 
To the Town Board of Yampa and to all Other Persons to whom it may concern: 
Notice is hereby given that a Special Yampa Town Board Meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 15, 2025 beginning at 
6:00 pm in the Upstairs Board Room at Crossan’s/Town Hall, 101 Main St., Yampa, CO.  Agenda is subject to change up to 24 
hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  
 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87279221896 

Meeting ID: 872 7922 1896 
Phone: 7193594580 Passcode 87279221896 

 
 

 
1. Call to Order 

a. Roll Call 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. Audience Participation (5 Minutes) 
Please limit comments to 5 minutes.  The Town Board will take comments under consideration but will not make any decision or take any action at 
this time.  Anyone who would like to address the Town Board concerning any agenda item will be given the opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes 
on that item. 

 
3. Personnel Policies Update – (Tabled from October 1, 2025) (20 Minutes) 

Discussion and direction on updates to Sections 9 of the Town of Yampa Personnel Policies, including revisions to office 
hours, lunch breaks, on-call hours, and overtime/compensatory time procedures. These changes are intended to align with 
Colorado labor law, FLSA standards, and promote consistency and operational efficiency across departments.  
 

4. Outside Entity Funding Application Discussion (Tabled from October 1, 2025) (20 Minutes) 
Discussion and direction on the Town’s Outside Entity application process, including clarification of eligibility requirements 
and revisions to current policy 
 

5. 2023 Audit – Amended (10 Minutes) 
Consideration to accept and approve revised and amended 2023 Audit 
 

6. 2026 Budget Presentation (30 Minutes) 
Presentation of the 2026 Budget 
 

7. Annual Audit Services – Request for Proposals (15 Minutes) 
Review of and direction on proposals submitted to provide Annual Audit Services for the Town of Yampa 
 

8. Stagecoach Mountain Ranch – Response to Routt County Referral on Land Use Applications (10 Minutes) 
Review, discussion and direction on draft Town of Yampa response letter due October 22, 2025 to Routt County referral and 
request for comments, recommendations, objections and/or requirements on County land use applications for Stagecoach 
Mountain Ranch  
 

9. Board Code of Conduct and Customer/Policies Work Session (30 Minutes) 
Work Session on Board Code of Conduct and Customer policies 
 

10. Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) Discussion – Trustee Montgomery (15 Minutes) 
Trustee Montgomery has requested discussion of the Town’s Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) with an 
Effective Date of January 1, 2020 
 

11. Consent Agenda (5 Minutes) 
a. Approval September 13, 2025 and October 1, 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes   
b. Approval of September, 2025 Payment Approval Report 
c. Ratification of Letter of Support to the Routt County Wildfire Mitigation Council for support for capacity grant funding.   
 

12. Staff and Board Member Reports/Updates (20 Minutes) 
a. Committee and meeting reports from Staff and Board Members 
 

13. Scheduled Meeting/Work Sessions (5 Minutes) 
a. Town Board and other requests for Agenda Items 

i. October 22, 2025 @ 6:30 p.m. – Planning Commission Meeting (Cancelled) 
ii. October 22, 2025 @ TBD p.m. – Auditor Interview(s) (Tentative) 

iii. November 5, 2025 @ 6:00 p.m. – Town Board Regular Meeting 
 

14. Adjournment 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87279221896


Town of Yampa

Town Board Agenda Item

Meeting Date: October 15, 2025

Agenda Item Title: Personnel Policies Update (Tabled from October 1, 2025)

Presented by: Sheila Symons, Town Administrator/Clerk

Attachments:  Section 9 of the Town of Yampa Personnel Policies 

Background:  Town Hall has historically operated from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, with 

staff informally taking lunch breaks during those hours. During a recent Board discussion, Trustee Montgomery 

raised concerns that under this arrangement, staff are effectively being paid during their lunch period, and that 

the Personnel Policies stated business hours are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  To address this and ensure compliance 

with Colorado labor law, the Board tasked Trustees Lewis and Montgomery with meeting staff to determine 

preferred office hours and lunch procedures.

While that meeting generated useful feedback, it did not result in a defined direction. Therefore, I am bringing 

forward formal recommendations to the Board for discussion and final decision-making.   It is important to 

establish consistent office hours and lunch break policies to ensure both legal compliance and operational 

clarity.

Beyond hours of operation and lunch procedures, additional areas of the Personnel Policies have surfaced that 

require clarification. Specifically, questions have arisen regarding the start and end times for on-call 

compensation, due to the current varied shift schedules for Public Works personnel.  Clarifying whether on-call 

pay begins after an employee�s scheduled shift or after Town Hall closes is essential for accurate tracking and 

fair application of the standards and compensation therefore.

There is also a need to determine if current standards in the Personnel Policies are appropriate as they relate to 

paid overtime versus compensatory time (Comp Time).  The Town currently budgets 120 hours annually per 

employee for expected overtime, e.g. snow removal, emergency call-outs. 

Recommendation:  To address the concerns raised and improve consistency across all departments and staff, 

I am recommending the Board discuss proposed updates to Section 9 of the Personnel Policies and provide 

clear policy direction on:

• Office hours and Public Works work hours

• Lunch breaks

• On-call hours

• Overtime/compensatory time



Page 2 of 3

Personnel Policies Update

October 15, 2025

2

Direction provided by the Board will be vetted to ensure any direction or changes align with Colorado 

labor law and reflect the Town�s policy framework including any updates thereto.

By creating a foundation for shaping a clear and equitable policy that applies uniformly, based on Board input 

and direction, final amendments will be prepared for adoption at a subsequent Board meeting with a goal of 

implementing any changes effective January 1, 2026 so budget considerations can be included, if such proves 

necessary.  Once approved, all Town staff will be provided copies of the Personnel Policies & Procedures 

Handbook for their review and written acknowledgment, confirming their understanding and agreement of the 

terms and conditions of employment with the Town of Yampa.

The following is provided for the Board�s consideration:

Office/Public Works Work Hours & Breaks: 

In accordance with the Colorado Overtime and Minimum Pay Standards Order, any employee working more 

than five consecutive hours must be provided with a 30-minute uninterrupted, duty-free meal break.  Employees 

must be fully relieved of duties and may leave the worksite during this time.  If the nature of the job prevents a 

duty-free break, the time must be paid.

Recommendation:

• Town Hall Open 7:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday  

o Office employees:   30-minute unpaid lunch break. 

o Public Works employees:  

▪ 1-hour unpaid 12 noon lunch with shifts:   7:00 am-4:00 pm or 8:00 am-5:00 pm

▪ 30-min. unpaid 12 noon lunch with shifts:  

7:00 am � 3:30 pm, 7:30 am-4:00 pm or 8:00 am-4:30 pm 

Employees scheduled for shifts exceeding five consecutive hours are required to take a 30-minute unpaid, duty-

free meal break. Working through this break is not permitted unless explicitly authorized by a supervisor, and 

such time will be compensated accordingly.

All employees will continue to receive two paid 15-minute rest breaks per day, as outlined in the Personnel 

Policy.  These must be taken daily or lost.

On-Call Compensation: 

Discussion and clarification are needed on whether on-call pay begins at the end of an employee�s scheduled 

shift or at the open/close of office hours. 

Overtime & Compensatory Time: 

Paid overtime is budgeted annually at 120 hours per Public Works employee for expected overtime based on 

historical data, including matters such as: 

• snow removal

• water/sewer issues

• infrastructure failures

• emergency response

• natural disasters

• on-call duties that result in exceeding 40 hours per week



Page 3 of 3

Personnel Policies Update

October 15, 2025

3

• Additional qualifying situations may be determined and pre-approved by the Town Administrator 

or Department Head.

Non-emergency situations, any time worked beyond an employee�s scheduled hours that does not meet the 

criteria for approved overtime are to be recorded as Compensatory Time (Comp Time) under the applicable 

provisions of the Personnel Policies. Comp Time is accrued at a rate of 1.5 times the hours worked over 40 

hours in a given week. Employees are encouraged to adjust their schedules within the same work week to help 

balance additional time worked and preserve personal time. Comp Time may be used as paid time off and must 

be scheduled in coordination with supervisors. Any unused Comp Time may be paid out at the end of the 

calendar year if the budget allows.  To ensure fairness, consistency and the economic constraints, the Town 

should standardize Comp Time across all departments. 



















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Town of Yampa 

 

 

2026 

 

Budget & Community Support 

Preparation Package 

 

 

For Outside Entities 



 

 

Table of Contents 

 
 
Budget Overview .................................................................................................................... 1 

Budget Schedule  .................................................................................................................... 2 

Budget Request Instructions ............................................................................................ 2 

Town of Yampa Funding Request Format ............................................................... 4 

Performance Measurement Instructions ................................................................... 5 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

2026 Budget Overview 
 

Changes to the Budget Process 

 

The following budget overview is provided to outside entities requesting Town funding to provide 

information on the Town’s financial status. 

 

Revenues  

 

Property Tax 

 

Assessed valuation for the 2026 is estimated to increase by approximately 14%.  The Town of Yampa is 

limited by the Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABOR) to an annual 5.5% increase plus the assessed valuation of 

new construction.  Under this scenario, property taxes remain relatively flat and is anticipated to generate 

approximately $96,833.  This represents an increase of approximately $5,050 over 2025.   

 

Sales Tax 

 

Sales tax through August is up about 16% over this same period in 2024.   Overall, the Town has experienced 

ups and downs in the retail, service and online sales that generate these dollars, and there are continuing signs 

that sales tax revenues may continue to increase slightly in 2026.  It is noteworthy, however, that the Town 

has seen some retail growth in recent months that may continue to impact sales tax revenues. 

 

Specific Ownership Tax (SO Tax) 

 

SO Tax looks to be down by about 10% and collections expected to be at $4,500 for the year.  The downturn 

in revenues is likely directly related to changes at the legislative level that impacted items subject to SO Tax. 

 

Mineral Lease & Severance Tax 

 

With the actions of the State legislature, the uncertainty of the direction of the Federal government with 

respect to extractive industries, and the general contraction of the oil, gas and coal industries, this source of 

revenue to the Town is proving to continue to be significantly curtailed in 2025 and expected to continue on 

into the future. 

 

Personnel 

 

The 2025 governmental and business activities personnel budget appears to be in alignment to the actual 

expenditures. 

 

Overall health insurance costs are increasing.  Costs vary on a number of factors but overall 2025 costs rose 

slightly, and the future remains an unknown.  The Town has taken steps to cap health insurance costs with 

limited $10,500/employee stipend, the creation of a health reimbursement account system and adopting 

employee-only coverages. 

 

The Board and the Town Administrator/Clerk will provide direction as to increases or decreases in FTEs and 

compensation.  

 

Operations 

 

The 2024 governmental activities change in net position reflected the completion of projects towards the year 

end and the receipt of project-related grant revenues for these projects in the next fiscal year leading to a 

decrease in the fund balance of $50,557.  



2 

 

 

While a governmental activities fund balance increase is optimal, the Town must carefully consider what 

resources it is able to provide as many years saw the opposite be true.  Any business activities that show a 

favorable variance is due to delayed capital projects that will be completed in subsequent years or the receipt 

of related grant funds in a different fiscal period. 

 

Uncertainty 

 

Items providing uncertainty are affordable and available housing, state and federal budgets and activities, 

local economic development needs, and any continued worldwide unknown economic status. 

 

 

Budget Request Schedule 

 

 

Task Dates Time 

for Task 

(Weeks) 

 
Budget Requests Due 10/20 4 

Board/Town Administrator/Treasurer Work Sessions  Thru 11/5 6 

Preparation for Board Work Session for Public Hearing Presentation 11/5 6 

Presentation of Budget 10/15  

Legal Notice and Proposed Budget Published 10/16-11/1 2 

Public Hearing on Proposed Budget 11/5 1 

Budget Adoption 12/3 4 

   

Other Dates   

New Construction and Assessed Valuation Provided by Assessor 8/25  

General Election 11/4  

 

Budget Request Instructions  
 

Overview 

 

This set of instructions describes the process for non-Town entities to use to request funding from Town of 

Yampa.  Funding requests are typically submitted in late summer/early fall as part of the budget process for 

the following calendar year.  Out of cycle requests should also use the format below to provide information 

in support of the funding request.  

 

Documentation 

 

Please provide the following: 

 

Cover letter on your organization’s letterhead describing the nature and amount of the request.  Complete 

and attach the Funding Request Form, as applicable.  (See page 4.) 

 

Program budget for 2026 using a standard profit and loss format.  Include all sources of revenue and expenses, 

beginning and ending working capital, reserves etc., for 2026 through 2028, if possible.  Projected current 

year, current year budget and at least one year of historical information should be included. 

 



3 

 

Performance based statistics should be provided (i.e. number of contacts, number of beneficiaries, types of 

cases, number of cases, etc.), where possible.  Performance based measurement guidance is included in this 

document on page 5. 

 

Please provide the most current year audited financial statements where applicable.  If audited financial 

statements are not available, provide what you have. 

 

If your organization is a 501(c)3 non-profit, please provide a copy of your latest Form 990 (tax return). 

 

Please submit budget requests to the Town Administrator/Clerk by 

October 15, 2025.   

 

Presentations 

 

Depending on the nature of your request, you may be asked to meet with the Town Administrator/Clerk and 

Town Treasurer or the Board of Trustees to provide additional information regarding the request. 
 

Questions 

 

Call Sheila Symons, Town Administrator/Clerk at 970-638-4511 or clerk@townofyampa.com . 

 
  



4 

 

TOWN OF YAMPA FUNDING REQUEST FORMAT 
                                                     

 

1. Budget Year     

 

 

2. Requesting entity  

 

 

3. Amount requested  

 

 

4. Project title / Use of funds  

 

 

5. Description of project or use of funds 

 

 

6. Other sources of funding 

 

 

 

7. Grant funding.  If a grant is part of the funding for this project please describe the grant, provide 

supporting documentation.   

 

 

 

8. Justification.  Provide information as to why the request is needed. Provide statistical information 

such as case load, turnaround time, reductions in cost, etc. to justify the request. Complete a cost/benefit 

analysis justifying the request if appropriate. 

 

 

 

9. Consequences of postponement or denial.  If the expenditure is postponed or denied what are the 

consequences (financial, completion of projects, etc.)? 

 

 

 

10. Alternatives to the request / project. 

 

 

 

11. Describe who will benefit from the request/project, how many people will benefit and why is support 

from the Town of Yampa taxpayers is appropriate? 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

Performance Measurements Instructions 
 

Please provide performance indicators where possible. 
 
Performance measurement is the regular systematic collection, analysis and reporting of data that tracks 
resources used, work produced and whether specific outcomes were achieved. 
 

Strategic Planning and Performance Measurements 

 

If we have performance measurement without strategic planning, we know how fast we are going, but we do 

not know whether we are going in the right direction. If we have strategic planning without performance 

measurement, we know we are going in the right direction, but we do not know whether we are getting there. 

 
If you can’t measure something, you can’t evaluate it; if you can’t evaluate something, you can’t determine 
progress (or lack thereof) and all you’re left with is opinions. 
 

 
Performance Indicators Should: 
 
Be quantifiable and measurable. 
 
Be relevant, understandable, timely, consistent, comparable and reliable. 
 

Types of Performance Indicators 

 

Input Indicators 

 

Input indicators are fundamentally the personnel, operating and capital budgets. Input indicators are 

fundamentally the current budget presentation. 

 

Output Indicators 

 

Outputs are goods and services performed by a department delivered to either external or internal customers. 

Outputs are measured quantitatively.  

 
Quantity of units produced. Examples - miles of road, number of calls for service, number of inspections, 
number of property’s assessed, number of cases per program, miles per vehicle, and hours per heavy 
equipment, etc. 

 
Efficiency Indicators 
 
Efficiency refers to how well inputs are utilized to produce outputs. Efficiency measures assess the 
relationship between program inputs and outputs. 
 
Ratio of inputs used per unit of output (or outputs per input) Cost per unit of service and/or level of service 
provided by employee. 
 
Examples - Cost per unit: cost per ton of refuse collected, cost per prisoner boarded, cost per transaction, 
cost per mile, cost per hour operated, cost per permit issued, etc. Productivity: hours per consumer 
complaint, plans reviewed per reviewer, permits per inspector, etc. 
 

 

 

 



6 

 

 
Service Quality Indicators 
 
Quality refers to the level of satisfaction expressed by customers of a particular program with respect to 
goods and services delivered to them by the government. 
 
How satisfied are customers, how accurately is a service provided, how timely a service is provided, etc. 
Examples - percentage of respondents satisfied with service, frequency of repeat repairs, average wait time, 
results of surveys, etc. 

 
Outcome Indicators 

 

Outcomes refer to the intended results that should be achieved by a program or service undertaking a specific 
goal and objective. Outcomes are qualitative consequences associated with a program/service. Outcomes 
focus on the ultimate why of providing the service 
 
Examples - reduction in violent/property crime rate, increase in job trainees who hold a job for more than six 
months, decrease in low birth-weight babies, water and air quality, availability of motor pool vehicles and 
heavy equipment.  

 



Town of Yampa

Town Board Agenda Item

Meeting Date: October 15, 2025

Agenda Item Title: 2023 Audit - Amended

Consideration to accept and approve revised and amended 2023 Audit

Presented by: Mary Alice Page-Allen, Treasurer/Planner

Background:  On September 17, 2025, the 2023 Audit received the previous day was considered, accepted and 

approved by the Board.  A more careful review of the audit materials was completed subsequent to that 

approval, and the following issues were identified for correction or the findings disputed by providing additional 

information and documentation to the auditor:

• A discrepancy on the 16th page of the audit (not numbered) where on the Statement of Activities, 

the figure of $25,748 appears to be an income item as it is under �Program Revenues�.  However, 

the formula subtracts this number as an expense.  I.e. Expenses-Administrative ($365,637) + 

Charges for Services $45,851+ Operating Grants and Contributions $25,748 = 

($294,038).  However, the $25,748 was subtracted resulting in a net expense (loss) of ($345,535).  

• The Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental funds on 

the 17th page of the audit and the Changes in Net Position Proprietary Fund Types on the 21st page 

of the audit combined �Net Change in Fund Balances and Change in Net Position� figures total 

$92,816 while the Statement of Activities (16th pg) totals either $22,583, as stated or $74,081 �as 

corrected� depending on the answer to bullet point 1 above.

• �Significant concerns that indicate a high risk of material misstatement� identified on the 6th page 

of the Audit including:

• Inadequate record-keeping practices, which have resulted in multiple errors in the financial 

statements.

• Instances of gross misstatements in key financial statements balances and disclosures.

• Non-Compliance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (US GAAP) in several 

material areas.

• A general lack of effective internal controls over financial reporting

Corrections related to bullet points 1 and 2 have been made, and documentation was reviewed with the auditor 

or again provided to the auditor that resulted in the related concerns and statements being removed from the 

audit.

Recommendation:  The Town Board accepts and approves the 2023 Audit as amended on October 2, 2025.


	0 - Agenda
	3 - Personnel Policies Update Staff Report
	3a - Personnel Policies Section 9
	4a Outside Funding Entites 2026
	5 - 2023 Amended Audit Staff Report

